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A BILL relating to the prohibition on aiding and abetting sexual abuse; and to provide for a penalty. 
 

Minutes:                                                  1 

 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Opened the hearing on HB 1082. 
 
Joe Kolosky, Deputy Director, ND Dept. of Public Instruction: See Attachment #1) Read 
testimony  
 
Representative Jeffery Magrum:  A teacher may have acted inappropriately, problems 
arise and the teacher is encouraged to move on maybe to another district and the cycle 
continues.  The inappropriate behavior exhibited, fails to be addressed and doesn’t get put 
on the record. Hence the teacher avoids any charges.  How would that apply to this? 
 
Joe Kolosky:  That is a good question.  ESSA, Civil Rights Law, promotes equity and 
transparency.  If there are more consequences for any administrative personnel who 
knowingly aided in covering such a crime, this may act as a safeguard in that it offers more 
accountability thru reporting. This may also prevent additional offenses by the school 
personnel. 
 
Representative Rick Becker:  I am concerned because what we are talking about is alleged 
behavior, not found guilty.  For example, Teacher Mary has a great reputation and is well 
liked for years.  Principal Sue hears a rumor that Teacher Mary has had a sexual relationship 
with Boy student. Principal Sue confronts Teacher Mary and she states this is completely 
false.  Soon Teacher Mary has to relocate to a new school.  Principal Sue gives New School 
a recommendation for Teacher Mary because she has been an excellent teacher.  At what 
point is she guilty of a misdemeanor because of the “alleged behavior”?  Can you clarify how 
this would work in the real world? 
 
Joe Kolosky: This is a concern we have heard from the field.  In the law it specifically outlines 
when this would not pertain; 1.) The incident was reported to law 2.) The case was closed 
OR if charges not filed after 4 years of incident.  The main issue is that this is written in the 
Every Student Succeeds Act and accepted under pretense that we would abide by every 
subsection in the law.  It is now up to ND Public Instruction to enforce this.  We support this 
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because it does protect children, but we know the details may need to be worked out. We 
kept the language simple per the Federal Law.  
 
Representative Terry Jones: After seeing what happened with Judge Cavanagh there is a 
cause for concern reading the bill.  I’m trying to get a distinction as it reads, “If they know or 
have probable cause to believe that a school employee engaged in sexual misconduct”.  It 
appears that has to be adjudicated before they know.  And my concern is the way our society 
is going if people are guilty because of an accusation, it will put the school employees in a 
bad position because they heard the rumor and was not adjudicated.  I believe there needs 
to be a clear distinction between what’s known and what’s alleged.  I’m interested in hearing 
about any discussion you’ve had on this because I don’t want to see a teacher’s life ruined 
because of a student making accusations. 
 
Joe Kolosky:  I agree.  We don’t want to make a false acquisition to ruin someone’s life. 
There are issues with “alleged activity”.  We used the language as written Federally. We 
didn’t add to it and we can’t take away from it.  We wanted to present it and start the 
discussion to see where it goes. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Limited Information can only be given by past employers when 
prospective employers inquire.  What are the normal procedures that you follow on this?  If 
this become the law would this become a red flag, in terms of possible future employment 
for the school employee?  Section 1; If the intent is to say do not give a positive reference if 
sought by prospective employers.  But if this employer never gives a positive impression, 
only providing facts, then the intent could be lost or it could be misinterpreted. 
 
Joe Kolosky:  That has become the norm where they just say when they started and when 
they stopped working.  As with a lot of laws, there are some ways to get around them as 
stated in your mentioned example.  We can’t delegate how employers answer reference 
inquiries. The intention here is to have something in place to help avoid or reduce instances 
where school officials purposefully rid their school or district of personnel that may have 
participated in sexual misconduct with a student, alleged or accused, to another school or 
district without record or report of suspected illegal behavior.  In hope of reducing the chances 
of further sexual misconduct going unreported throughout school systems only resulting in 
negative influence on students. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  that is the point As Representative Magnum pointed out in his 
statement, we certainly do not want to push education personnel along that are negatively 
impacting students.  In Subsection 2; if any of those things are the case it says Subsection 1 
does not apply.  So what is intended to happen? 
 
Joe Kolosky:  1.) If the case is officially closed, you could give a positive recommendation.  
2.) if the employee has been acquitted. 3.) Case or investigation remains open without 
charges filed for 4 years   These are the only times in which a recommendation maybe given 
per every student succeeds act.  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Ok. 
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Representative Jones:  That is where my concern lies.  If someone is accused of being 
inappropriate, if they decide to move on to another school, the only way they can get out of 
this cleanly is by having charges filed against them.  If there is a rumor then the school is 
going to be limited to giving a perfunctory resume for that teacher or you go thru subsection 
2; A, B, C and D.  Basically, charges will clear their name or it hangs there for 4 years without 
charges. Ultimately, it will be on their record. 
 
Representative Gary Paur:  I don’t like this bill.  Line 13 after files we put a period and 
deleted the rest of the language, at least it would even the playing field.  Wouldn’t it? 
 
Joe Kolosky:  It could work, but we would be deleting language from the Federal law, Every 
Child Succeeds Act which we will abide by.  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: The result would be that there would be no school district could 
ever give a positive recommendation to anyone for any reason.  Then the question is, do you 
want to not be able to give someone a good recommendation 
 
Representative Rick Becker:  I am not in favor of this at all.  It is desired because it is 
required by ESSA.  If this would not pass what is the consequence, without fear mongering?   
 
Joe Kolosky:  We do not know. We would have a conversation with them.  There could be 
litigation with ND and possible funding pulled. 
 
Representative Becker:  And what if we were to amend this? 
 
Joe Kolosky:  A waiver could be put in place as well. If we would show that we are working 
with the law.  But honestly, I’ve no history down that road, so I don’t know for certain. 
 
Representative Becker:  The amendment significantly to make it more palatable to the 
committee and potentially put you in the same situation as if we vote it down because it would 
differ from the Federal ESSA guideline? 
 
Joe Kolosky:  It would be more digestible that we are working with it the best we can than 
versus vote it down. We could explain that to them that we are different in ND and this doesn’t 
fit for us.  If we can create language that still upholds the safety of students that also works 
with the ND legislature and the US Dept. of Education. 
 
Representative Jones: If the school knows or has probably cause to believe on line 14 
maybe it is not as we think because if they don’t know or have probable cause, then it 
shouldn’t prevent them from moving forward.  This hinges on the definitions of probably cause 
and know. 
 
Joe Kolosky:  I can go back and get a distinct definition for this. 
 
Representative Aaron McWilliams:  Do you have any information on how long cases like 
these remain open?   I’m wondering if we can visit the listed 4-year reference and get that 
lessened. 
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Joe Kolosky:  Teachers and administrators are mandated reporters and follow the process 
in place. Typically, not more than 6 months to gather evidence and charges filed if evidence 
supports.  The 4 years mentioned, I’m uncertain where this number came from. 
 
Representative McWilliams:  If we amend this bill to say 6 months?  
 
Joe Kolosky:  I will present this and get that answer.  I will also get the definitions asked for. 
 
Representative Paur:  The other 49 states have adopted this wording? 
 
Joe Kolosky:  I do not know.  I can research that nationally and provide my findings. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Ok.  What funds are we talking about losing?  How much do you 
get from this program? 
 
Joe Kolosky:  21st Century before and after school program, my program, receives $6 
million.  We give the money out to the local school districts. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  The program under ESSA? 
 
Joe Kolosky:  ESSA incorporates all the Federal Education Law, So my program is under 
ESSA too. I believe we get about 22 million in the state.  It comes to us and we allocate it to 
the districts.   
 
Representative McWilliams:  Is there a precedent set in other states if don’t completely 
comply with the Feds?   
 
Joe Kolosky:  I do not believe all federal funding has ever been withheld from any state, 
maybe they’ve only received partial funding.  I do not know those amounts or to what state 
but I can check. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:   We recognize the intent of this bill.  Further support? 
 
Alexis Baxley:  Discussed how the actions would be handled in the state when received. 
36:00-40:40   
As soon as any accusations come up, they will be required to report.  Administration has  
30 -60 days to complete internal investigation, there may be variations per district.  Once 
investigation is complete they will decide upon the findings if the law needs to be involved.  
If so, they are contacted immediately.   Section 1-The only prohibition is preventing admin 
from getting the report. Once an accusation has been reported to school administration and 
has been handled whether without findings or handed over to law enforcement and they are 
in the midst of investigation, there is no reason to withhold any recommendation.  This bill is 
preventing the passing of a teacher from district to district without properly investigating 
accusations. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Section 1 says they do not have pass the accusations on to a 
potential future employer 
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Alexis Baxley: Yes, if a teacher was exonerated of any internal or external investigation that 
would not be included in their file. 
 
 
Opposition: None 
 
 
 
Chairman K Koppleman:  Closed the hearing 
 
 
. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to the prohibition on aiding and abetting sexual abuse; and to provide for a penalty. 

  
 

Minutes:                                                  2 

 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Reopened the meeting on HB 1082.   
 
Representative Rick Becker:  Per my notes, probable cause was brought up as one of the 
points of consternation. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  The whole point is that recommendations couldn’t be made if 
accusations have not been properly looked into, internally or externally.  
 
Representative Steve Vetter:  I think the unintended consequence of this bill is that people 
will be considered guilty before they are proven so.  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  How do you feel that could be the result?  
 
Rep. Vetter:  You are just accused Discussed probably cause.   
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  Definition of probably cause is a higher standard than just 
suspecting.   
 
Representative Karla Hanson: Reiterated the information shared by Alexis Baxley’s 
testimony given 1-9-2019, ND School Board Association.  
 
Representative Gary Paur:  I question Probable cause.  If you have suspicions and you turn 
it over to the police, they will determine if there is probable cause.  I’m not certain school 
employees has a good enough handle to determine probable cause. 
 
Representative Aaron McWilliams:  One of the key things that stands out to me on this bill 
is number three.  It says, “within 4 years of the date of which the information was reported. 
Testimony we received says it’s more likely these things will be resolved within 6 months.  
So why would we put 4 years then? 
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Chairman K. Koppelman:  My assumption is it’s just laying out a timeframe saying if nothing 
has happened within this timeframe, it probably not going to. 
 
Rep. Becker: Couple things I find interesting.  First was brought up by Rep. Hanson or Paur.  
If you know something is going on you can make a glowing recommendation.  They are 
required by law to report it, mandatory reporters.  The second you’ve reported it to any 
authority you are no longer bound to this bill.  Finally, in Ms. Baxley’s testimony, she kept 
referencing things that rise to the level of being reported, but again once they rise to that level 
it’s already addressed in statute.  So it is, in fact, the little things we are dealing with in this 
bill. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  It is not just the reporting it. Went over 1, 2 & 3. 
 
Rep. Becker:  Are there any options not included in those three things? 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  I someone is convicted then this would apply.  If it has not been 
reported, could it be a case.  I don’t know that probable cause should be used as it’s more 
investigative and handled and determined by law enforcement.  I believe it should state, 
“know or have reason to believe”.   
Further Discussion 
 
Rep McWilliams: Motion Do NOT PASS 
Rep Vetter Seconded 
 
 
Representative Bernie Satrom: We are doing a balancing act here. I like that intent of this 
bill.  We have a responsibility to our children and our safety.    
 
Representative Bob Paulson:  I recall the standard response among the school state wide 
is not to give a recommendation but simply state employment dates. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: The days of receiving helpful information regarding a prospective 
employee are over. Now for the fear of liability places are just stating they work there and 
when. 
 
Rep. Vetter:  Innocent before guilty, I think this is a legalized witch hunt.  We are changing 
the law based on the crime furthermore a person is having to defend themselves over an 
accusation.  I am voting no on this one. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  Years ago there was a situation in the catholic church where this 
exact thing was happening.  Accusations of sexual misconduct flew and then the church 
leader would be shuffled to a new location which only resulted more incidents of abuse. 
 
Representative Luke Simons:  This is an alarming bill from the start. By passing this bill we 
would then be assuming the suspected is guilty because of allegations. We are innocent until 
proven guilty. Hard no 
 



House Judiciary Committee  
HB 1082 
January 14, 2019 
Page 3  
   

Rep. McWilliams:  If this would pass, I would hope that we could amend the bill back from 
four years. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: The time to do that would be now if the committee desires 
  
Rep. Paur:  Rep. Hanson pointed out they are required to report probable cause to the police.  
So why do we need line 13, 14, and 15.   
 
Rep. Hanson:  My notes say all teachers and staff are mandatory reporters.  If they are told 
something or see something they must report it. 
 
Rep. Paur:  No probable cause mentioned there? 
 
Rep. Hanson: Probable cause in my notes 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: If you get rid of that language, basically what you are saying is 
that no school district can ever give a recommendation. 
 
Rep. Paur: Discussed amendment options  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: The you would be saying in subsection 2, then you can’t give a 
positive recommendation if exonerated. 
 
Rep. Jones: We are not dealing with guilty or innocent. The process will go though.  I see 
this as stating if any of these things are going on, you cannot provide a glowing 
recommendation.  I am concerned there is a bit of undertone saying they are guilty before 
they have a chance to defend themselves.  This is just to assist in the process. 
 
Rep. Becker:  Why do we really need this if they are required to report anyway.  ESSA is the 
driving force behind this and why it’s necessary.  We want the best bill possible with a couple 
adjustments.  I think we should withdraw the motion and try to amend this. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  I agree; I believe this bill has a noble purpose we just may need 
to define a few things. I would ask the maker and seconder of the motion if they wish to 
withdraw for the time being and if so I would ask Rep. Rick Becker work on this bill with Rep. 
Hanson. 
 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  Withdrew motion  
Rep. Vetter: Second 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Closed meeting 
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Minutes:                                                  1 

 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Reopened the meeting on HB 1082.   
 
Representative Rick Becker: See Attachment #1, proposed amendment.  Went over the 
language in the bill. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Replacing 4 years with 1 year.  Is there a concern that 1 year 
may be too brief of timeframe when considering any possible investigation? 
 
Rep. Becker: The sense that most investigations may take up to 6 months. We figured if we 
doubled that it would provide adequate time, this has been confirmed by DPI 
 
Representative Karla Hanson: Confirmed with DPI and confirmed timeframe and School 
board has ok’d the amendment. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  Page 1, line 14 after has, insert substantial.  Was the intent also 
to remove probable cause?  
 
Representative Aaron McWilliams:  What is the technical difference substantial VS. 
Probable 
 
Rep. Becker:  Probable cause is a known legal term, applies to the state level and is 
investigative.  The intent is to steer away from the legal terminology and replace it with lay 
person terminology.  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Probable cause is for law enforcement; it is what gives them 
authority to act.  “Knew” or “should have known” would be more concise to lay person 
verbiage as it doesn’t have the legal measure. 
 
Rep. McWilliams: Is there a definition for “substantial cause”? 
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Chairman K. Koppelman: No, that is a layman’s term.   
 
Representative Terry Magrum:  Definition of “Substantial”- of considerable importance, size 
or worth. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: So we are saying, “We have a considerable amount of reason to 
believe”. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: In a legal proceeding what is called the preponderance of the 
evidence is 50%+1.  This is on the front end and it is not a court case, it’s more like 
circumstantial information surrounding something may have happened; a strong suspicion. 
 
Intern Beau: (08:37) Per Legislative Counsel, the amendment was drafted as requested. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: So how does “substantial probable cause” differ from “probable 
cause”?   
 
Rep. McWilliams:  Probable cause is 51% surety; Substantial cause is 30%. 
 
Rep. Becker: This is the direction we want to go and should amend, as recommended.  
 
 
Motion Made: Representative Becker to add Proposed Amendment, See Attachment 2 
Seconded:  Representative Hanson 
 
 
Representative Gary Paur: I’m getting confused.  I thought the intent was to take it out of 
the legal realm by removing probable cause. 
 
Rep. Becker: When you look at standard of proof, probable cause is standard use and the 
lowest measure of “reason to believe” a crime may have taken place.  Typically, the step 
greater is “clear and convincing” evidence. If we use “substantial probable cause”, it has a 
definition by law but it’s not a commonly used legal standard of proof.  But for interpretation, 
it’s higher than the lowest of the low. 
 
Rep. Paur:  Why are we using “probable cause” if it’s a legal term?  Who is qualified to 
determine this?  I think it should be law enforcement, not school admin or faculty. 
 
Rep. Hanson:  Probable cause is a reasonable basis for believing that a crime may have 
occurred.   
 
Rep. Becker:  I do not think this amendment makes the bill acceptable.  I think this makes it 
less egregious.  I will vote for the amendment.  No on the bill. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: We have a motion to move forward with the amendment.  
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Voice Vote:  Motion carries to add Amendment 19.8042.01001 Title 02000 
 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: We now have the amended bill before us, wishes of the 
committee?  
 
 
Motion made: Do Pass as Amended by Representative Hanson; Seconded by 
Representative Magrum 
 
 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Further discussion? 

 
Rep. Magrum- This situation has happened in my area. So I do know there is a place for it 
and it will serve a purpose. It comes down to do we look out for the children or the teacher.  
If people are talking about something like this, there just maybe something going on and it 
needs further investigation. This is where this comes in.  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  Pretty good synopsis.  
 
Representative Steve Vetter:  I understand we are talking about a recommendation. But 
why are we throwing out due process law, for what? Because we are afraid something could 
happen.  I am a firm no.  
 
Rep. Magrum:  They would still get due process and have their day in court.  This bill means 
the school has to report it. 
 
Rep. Vetter: When? 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  This is a job recommendation bill for employment.  The 
exceptions deal with the exceptions.  The bill states; School faculty/admin must report 
information about teacher/student sexual misconduct before the teacher can pursue other 
teaching opportunities byway of a good recommendation. To summarize the current school 
district cannot “pass” the teacher to the next district in hopes of quieting or ridding the 
problem.   
 
Representative Bob Paulson:  As I understand it, relating to this bill - No one is accusing, 
charging or reporting.  They are simply using this as a decision making matrix to give a 
recommendation. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Correct. Well stated.   
We have Do Pass as amended before us.  Clerk, please call the roll. 
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Clerk:  Roll Call Vote; Yes 9    No 5   Absent 0 
 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  Bill passes.  Rep. Magrum, will you carry the bill? 
 
Representative Magrum is the bill carrier 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Closed meeting 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to create and enact two new sections to chapter 15.1-19 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to the prohibition on aiding and abetting sexual abuse; and to provide 
for a penalty. 

Minutes:  3 Attachments

Chair Larson opens the hearing on HB 1082. Senator Osland is absent today. 

Joe Kolosky, Deputy Director of the Office of School Approval & Opportunity with DPI, 
testifies in favor (see attachment #1) 

(4:05) Senator Luick: Do we have evidence that this is happening today in North Dakota? 
Kolosky: We have no evidence. This bill has risen from other states having these issues. It’s 
been brought to the attention of the US Department of Education. It happened several times 
and that teacher was found guilty of such a crime.  In this state, there are issues all the time 
that happen, but usually taken care of in a prompt manner. 

Senator Myrdal: The second page of your testimony states “if the individual or agency 
knows, or has probable cause to believe”. Isn’t that incredibly vague language as in he said 
she said? Perhaps you have a good looking 25-year-old teacher and a 16-year-old girl has 
a crush on said teacher. He does not respond but she accuses him. 
Kolosky: This question came up on the House side and that’s why the amendment to the 
bill was “knows or has substantial probable cause to believe”. Knowing was the cause of 
debate especially on the floor for that same reasoning. If it’s a rumor, I could be accused of 
this and it could cause some fatal harm to your career. 

Senator Myrdal: I’m a former school board member. Is there anything in statute today that 
says that they can be held in suspension until there is a court case or conviction? What if you 
are innocent but they think there is probable cause? It’s a little open to me. 
Kolosky: You are correct. The intent of the law is to protect kids and if you know something 
is happening and you protect that teacher to get rid of them and it comes back to you that 
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you were protecting, that’s where the consequence comes in for the aiding. This is the same 
conversation I had on the House side. I was an administrator to and I’ve encountered that. I 
had teachers come to me and I felt their interview was great but wished their letter of 
recommendation reflected their actual teaching ability. That does happen. Sometimes you 
do it to get rid of that people because if you give them a poor recommendation, you’re stuck 
with them. 

Chair Larson: I like the idea that a bad teacher cannot just be passed onto another school 
district to become their problem. However, the mechanics of it is difficult for me to embrace 
because of some of the questions already asked. A lot of us watched a lot of the Kavanaugh 
hearings and without evidence, it’s difficult to defame somebody that way, but you’re almost 
afraid not to if the allegations sound so plausible. Has this law been passed in other states? 
Kolosky: Yes, and other states have amended it. I can email you that information (see 
attachment #3). It is our job at the department to follow the federal law. We tend to think we 
trust people and there are always instances where you are accused of something you didn’t 
do, but then there are those instances where you’re never accused of something you have 
done. I think the point of this law was to try to stop that. 

Senator Bakke: I understand what you’re saying here. As president of the teacher’s union 
in my capacity, I found that there was a teacher who needed to be removed for cause but 
administration failed to document it properly and therefore they just passed the person 
around. I couldn’t do anything about talking the person out of the profession because again 
there was no evidence. What are your thoughts about doing some language that says that 
school districts are required to document in-personnel files when there’s an issue of abuse 
or aiding and abetting and then that’s part of the public record? Is that how other states are 
doing it? Then it’s there and nobody can deny that it’s there. 
Kolosky: Each state is doing it uniquely different and that could be a possibility. Our stance 
in the department is follow the law but keep kids as safe as we can in any mechanism 
possible. It’s up to the committee and the chamber to debate and add amendments you see 
fit. I see there are some educators in the room today and I feel there will be some robust 
conversation about this and the changing of the amendments. We would not be opposed to 
that amendment. 

(11:45) Senator Luick: Isn’t that in law already? Isn’t that already being documented today? 
Kolosky: Yes, but part of this law is the punishment goes onto the person who’s covering it 
up. That’s the essential part of the law. 

Senator Luick: Then the administration could be held accountable as well. 
Kolosky: Correct. 

Senator Myrdal: Wouldn’t they be covering or aiding an allegation? There’s nobody on this 
committee who doesn’t want to protect children, but I greatly fear that we’re in a society where 
accusations have become true. I’m afraid this is too open. How do we amend this to not only 
protect children but also the accused in a he said she said? I’m surprised to see the national 
language be this way too. 

Vice Chairman Dwyer: Since we’re on the subject, could it be revised to say “if the individual 
or agency knows or it has been confirmed”? 
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Kolosky: That is up to the committee. Each state has a variation on the law. Some have 
gone through the exact verbiage of the law and some have amended it. It is our job to follow 
the law and provide this testimony and information to the state so we can make our own 
decision on how we would proceed by abiding by this. 

Vice Chairman Dwyer: is there any limitation on the funding if states amended as they see 
fit? 
Kolosky: I received the same question on the House. I don’t believe they will take money 
away from us especially with the current administration. The United Stated department of 
Education is bare bones there and I don’t believe they follow up on states and hold them 
accountable for amending this. I think if we threw it out totally, we’d get a phone call, have 
meetings and explain our case because they have to understand it’s not the DPI not abiding 
by the federal law. If the state legislature disagrees with this, it’s the state’s decision. No state 
has even been withheld money for not abiding by the federal law. It came close in Michigan 
with No Child Left Behind with the funded mandates, but it never went without funding. 

Senator Bakke: Page 1 line 16 says this “does not apply if it’s been reported to law 
enforcement, if the matter has been closed by law enforcement after an investigation” and 
so on. So what this is basically saying is if there was an accusation made, true or not, you 
are required to tell the new place they’re going. 
Kolosky: This is saying that when they hear an accusation and do an investigation and get 
law enforcement involved, this wouldn’t apply because they’ve done their due diligence and 
now they carry it on to that next level. I enjoy the debate and I understand the knows part, 
but if I’m an administrator and I get wind of this, I will do an investigation. The bill itself is 
when I do get wind of that and I do nothing, there is a consequence. 

Senator Bakke: As a school teacher and administrator you’re a mandatory reporter, so 
there’s no way you can get around this. You have to report this. Is this just a penalty for 
administrators? If they fail to follow through and don’t report it, then there is a consequence 
for them, right or wrong and whether there was something done or not done. Correct? 
Kolosky: Correct. It is a tough situation to be in. I am a mandated reporter as well. I had an 
issue where someone called me at this building and said they had a strong suspicion that 
this child was being abused. They gave me the names, now I had to report it. The meaning 
of the bill is if that information is reported to me and I don’t report it, that’s the issue we’re 
addressing. It’s tough and that’s why the bill was amended on the House side with 
“substantial probable cause” and another amendment was on page 2 line 5. They decreased 
it from four years to one year. 

Senator Luick: My question was to define “substantial probable cause” that you just 
mentioned. Who will decide that? 
Kolosky: Probable cause is open for interpretation. That is an item to be talked about. I 
would assume we use what’s already law; there is a definition out there. 

Senator Myrdal: If you were a school employee or administrator, you are under those 
mandatory law, but this relates to assisting in obtaining a new job. It doesn’t address what 
you are mentioning about reporting it. This is about the passing on of a potential bad actor to 
a different school where there’s children. Who do you report it to? 
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Kolosky: It is a different process. You would file your 960 report to social services. I believe 
there is a penalty for a mandating reporter not to report as well. Circling back to the point of 
this, I’m a mandated reporter and if I don’t do it, I will get a consequence for that but also a 
consequence with this proposed bill. It’s essentially the “good ol’ boys club”- getting friends 
jobs who probably shouldn’t have that job. We’re trying to eliminate that. 

Senator Bakke: Basically if everybody is doing their job and there has been some sexual 
abuse and the administrator files the paperwork, which takes us right into section 2, 
everything is fine because that will then be in their file. We’re saying they’re obligating to tell 
the next employer if it’s in their file. 
Kolosky: Correct. 

Senator Bakke: This is only covering the times that they have just said “well, I will just pass 
this person to another school and let them figure it out” whether there’s evidence or not. As 
a mandatory reporter, we have to report. This is just to cover the times when they just pass 
the problem along because they don’t want to report it because it’s not pleasant when you 
do. 
Kolosky: or it may be a relative or friend 

Senator Bakke: Then they would say you are aiding and abetting because even if there is 
no proof of it, you knew there was an allegation. 
Kolosky: Correct.  

Senator Bakke: This is fairer to the person who is being accused because if you’re reporting 
it, an investigation is done, and it’s found that it’s not true, then you have alleviated that 
suspicion from the person who was being accused. This is a way to not only protect the 
school and child, but also the person being accused if they are not guilty. 
Kolosky: Correct. You can see it that way. 

Joseph Jensen, UND Law Intern, neutral party 
Jensen: “Probable cause” is not defined in the Century Code. It’s a legal term of art that is 
generally done through case law.  

(26:33) Alexis Baxley, ND School Boards Association, testifies in favor 
Baxley: We support this bill because as part of the approved ESSA plan of North Dakota, 
districts are already federally required to comply with this. It’s probably unlikely that federal 
funding would be removed from a district, but there is always a chance and most districts 
don’t like to take a chance of losing any dollars. I’ll point out that there is no requirement for 
an administrator or a staff member to share the accusation with any party other than law 
enforcement. If they have reported that to law enforcement and an investigation is done, the 
requirements of this bill go away. The only prohibition is in providing a positive job reference 
which employers are not required to do anyway. You are not required to share with another 
school district what the accusation was. If you have documented that in your personnel file, 
you are not mandated to share that personnel file until the next district requests it as an open 
record. There has been a lot of talk about an accusation that was proven untrue hurting 
someone’s career- this does not mandate that that accusation be shared with the next 
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employers. It is just, to Mr. Kolosky’s point, you cannot provide a job reference without having 
done some due diligence in order to avoid the controversy. 

Senator Myrdal: Today if a teacher applies for a job somewhere else, does that school 
district have to do an open record request to get their file? Wouldn’t that be automatic on that 
new school district? 
Baxley: It is not a full open records request, but a district does not automatically forward 
personnel files to the next district. That district would need to call the previous district or their 
current district and request those files. The business managers aren’t just going to continually 
forward them, but you don’t have to go through the full process of a request. 

Senator Myrdal: Isn’t that common practice? 
Baxley: I would never speculate on a percentage other than to say it does not happen 100% 
of the time. 

(30:45) Erin Claussen, Junior at the University of Mary, testifies in favor (see 
attachment #2) 

Chair Larson: When I worked at the police youth bureau, I supervised social work students 
from the University of Mary. Well done.  

Senator Bakke: If you’re a mandatory reporter and you don’t report, what’s the punishment? 
Kolosky: It’s a class B misdemeanor. 

Senator Bakke: That’s what you have on here- a class B misdemeanor. It’s 30 days or a fine 
of $1,500 or both. Isn’t that already covered under that section of the law? 
Kolosky: Yes, but the verbiage of this law would comply with ESSA. I’m not sure if they could 
receive two misdemeanors now from this and then the mandated reporter requirement.  

Jensen: You can be charged with both but not necessarily convicted with both. 
Kolosky: It strengthens the case for someone to follow through and report when you have 
these consequences otherwise. The chances of getting at least one are higher than none. 

(35:25) Steve Vetter, District 18 Representative, testifies in opposition 
Representative Vetter: I felt the need to come here and explain what happened in the House 
and ultimately why I think this is a bad bill. It says this bill passed with only 16 nays, but I 
believe that it would not have if the rules had been followed. It was on the floor and I was not 
given a chance to speak. This was early on and some of the people are just learning the 
rules. I talked on the floor to reconsider the motion. There were 44 votes to reconsider and 
20 people did not vote which is against House rules- everybody needs to vote. Therefore, if 
it was 2-1 on those, I’m assuming there would have been 4 more votes and this wouldn’t 
have been in front of you today. 

This is called the “pass the trash” bill but I would rather call this the “Judge Kavanaugh 
law for teachers”. I believe this bill will certainly catch more offenders but punish the innocent 
as well. I understand the situation and why this bill was brought forth. We have all heard and 
know the stories. There’s the young teacher and student who mess around but there’s no 
proof. Because authorities can’t find evidence, an accusation is good enough just as long as 
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we hate the crime and we cannot catch the offenders, correct? Some might say, “What’s the 
big deal, most of them are guilty”. I know this because this happened in my community. What 
about a teacher who has been falsely accused by a student?  Or a colleague accusing 
another colleague? Do we throw away the innocent along with the guilty? Do due process 
rights matter or not?  

To add to the discomfort of this bill in looking at the aiding and abetting section, there 
is a high probability more school officials will accuse other school officials with a class B 
misdemeanor. Aiding and abetting is described as “assisting a school employee, a contractor 
or an agent if the individual or agency knows or has substantial probably cause to believe 
that the school employee, contractor or agent engaged in sexual misconduct regarding a 
minor or student in violation of law”. With this bill we are expecting school officials and 
contractors working at the school, not law enforcement, to know what substantial probable 
cause is. If they assist an accused person in obtaining a job under this bill, the penalty is a 
class B misdemeanor. We all know probable cause is, but do you know what substantial 
probable cause is? If you work in a school, you better find out what that is.  

The House amended it thinking probable cause was too low of a standard. They 
wanted to make it higher to substantial probable cause which is an actual, legal term but I 
don’t think it’s found pretty much anywhere. The supporters of the bill say this isn’t criminal 
law, it’s just a job reference. However, that reference affects the livelihood of that person. If 
that person or school doesn’t report it, it’s criminal, so a school official cannot get a job 
reference if they are accused of a crime. If accused, then one must prove their innocence in 
a lengthy process and investigation as proposed in this bill.  

(40:40) Chair Larson: As you’ve been listening to the testimony, did it give you any level of 
comfort to hear that if there is reason to believe that they’ve done that and they work in that 
school system, they have to report it anyway. If they did, that would alleviate them of any 
kind of problem once reported. If they believe that this person has had sexual contact with a 
student, then they are required to report that. 

Representative Vetter: That’s two things. There’s the official reporting it, then there’s the 
actual person that’s being accused. What I’m talking about is the person being accused. If 
you’re accused, how do you clear your name? You have those three things on there in 
basically a year’s time. That’s a punishment just being accused. If accused, then one must 
prove their innocence. This is the opposite of how our justice system is supposed to work. It 
is the burden of the government to find a person guilty before they are punished. If we 
continue down this path, where does this lead us? What type of precedent does this set? I 
would ask for a do not pass.  

Senator Myrdal: “The good ol boys club” was mentioned earlier. Do you think there’s 
potential for the opposite to happen and accuse somebody innocent under this bill? 
Representative Vetter: Certainly and I don’t see anything in there as far as a false 
accusation. What happens then? 

Senator Myrdal: Let’s say you’re a superintendent or official principal and have heard a 
rumor but you have a gut feeling that it’s probably not true and elect as a leader not to report 
it. Now you may have committed a misdemeanor under this proposal.  
Representative Vetter: That is correct. 
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Vice Chairman Dwyer: What if we change the language to say “if the agency knows, or it 
has been confirmed or there’s an investigation underway”. Let’s say someone applies for a 
job, but there’s an investigation underway. The school A should tell school B about this, 
shouldn’t they? 
Representative Vetter: It’s a tough call. Unless you’re actually found guilty of something, I 
don’t believe that you should be punished for that. In this case, he or she is only being 
accused. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: School B is obviously not going to hire him if there’s an investigation 
underway, so that will be a mark on that applicant.  
Representative Vetter: From what I understand, right now they just do one recommendation 
whereas ultimately if this were to pass, you would get a different type of recommendation. 
So of course, if you got the different type of recommendation, everyone would know you’re 
being accused of some type of crime with a student. 
 
Kolosky: As a school administrator, you must take at least three hours of school law. This 
covers probable cause and reasonable suspicion. They will have some kind of idea of what 
needs to be reported. There’s a heavy dose of school law in our programs in the state. Each 
class I took talked about school law as well. 
 
Senator Myrdal: This is very convoluted to me. Say you have an administrator taking that 
training. Can you then as an administrator say “well I took this training and my gut feeling 
said it didn’t’ fill that measurement”. Is that a legal excuse for you not to get a misdemeanor?  
Kolosky: You are correct. It goes back to if I have a suspicion, I have to do an investigation. 
We are taught that in school. Also if you are a teacher applying for a new job, they ask you 
on the application if you are under investigation, so there is a safety net there.  
 
Senator Myrdal: but as a matter of law, which this is, that particular provision doesn’t 
necessarily play into whether you use your training as an affirmative defense. It becomes a 
grey area. 
Kolosky: I would agree. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: The mandated reporting- if you know, you’re required to report but if 
you hear a rumor, to what extent are you required to investigate? 
Kolosky: If I hear a rumor, I personally will do a formal investigation. I will get my social 
worker and counselor in the room and we will make a determination as a team of how to 
proceed through this issue. I was also a Head Start director working with poor children. I 
dealt with this probably every day. It’s a difficult situation to be in, but you have to do it. Your 
job is to keep kids safe. 
 
Baxley: There is also a class b misdemeanor penalty for a false report. If you are a mandated 
reporter, and you file a false report, there is a criminal penalty for that as well. 
 
Chair Larson closes the hearing on HB 1082. 
 
Chair Larson: I want to wait until Senator Osland is back to take action. 
Senator Bakke: I want to see what other states have done and how we can rework this. I 
will talk to Legislative Council. 



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Judiciary Committee 
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol 

HB 1082 
2/5/2019 

Job #32148 (5:36) 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Meghan Pegel 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact two new sections to chapter 15.1-19 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to the prohibition on aiding and abetting sexual abuse; and to provide 
for a penalty. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments 

 
Chair Larson opens discussion on HB 1082. 
 
Senator Bakke: I looked through Mr. Kolosky’s testimony from the Education Commission 
of the States, and it looks like this bill is almost word for word with federal law. However, in 
talking with other senators, we have an amendment we would like to prepare. On line 14, we 
would remove “has substantial probable cause to believe” and in place of that add “has been 
confirmed or an investigation is underway”. Does that tighten it up a bit? 
 
Senator Myrdal: “has been confirmed”- How does that translate in legal language in Century 
Code? I think it’s better with this amendment, but I need to know what that legal word means. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: It’s not a legal term, but it would encompass things like a confession 
or a conviction, which are both legal terms, or evidence that hasn’t led to a prosecution yet 
but there is a photo or some other evidence. 
 
Senator Myrdal: Confirmed by who? There is a lot of ambiguity there. We need to protect 
those falsely accused, so how do we address that? 
 
Chair Larson: we all agree that we want to protect kids from any employee that might be 
putting them at risk but at the same time we don’t want to have rumors ruin someone’s 
reputation and job opportunities if that’s unfounded. Let’s wait on Legislative Council to draft 
this amendment and get a Christmas tree version of this. 
 
Chair Larson ends discussion on HB 1082. 
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Chair Larson opens discussion on HB 1082. 
 
(see attachment #1) 
Senator Bakke: There was concern that you could get into a “he said she said” situation and 
people could be accused of something they were innocent of that would then destroy their 
opportunities for future employment. This amendment will help that. 
 
Senator Bakke: Moves to Adopt Amendment 19.8042.02001 to replace “has substantial 
probable cause to believe” with “it has been confirmed, or an investigation is 
underway”. 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Seconds. 
 
Senator Osland: Can we talk about the intent of this bill? 
 
Chair Larson: When we have school personnel involved in a sexually inappropriate 
circumstance, the concern is that this person may leave that school where their reputation is 
so tarnished and move to another school, get hired there and carry on with the same poor 
behavior. The intent is that if someone in that school helps that offender get a job someplace 
else without letting the new location know that they have this background, then they can be 
charged with a class B misdemeanor of aiding and abetting in doing this. The quotation that 
the testifier used was a “pass the trash” situation. We’ve been discussing if this bill will 
actually fulfill that attempt, or is this going to be a situation to help further sully someone’s 
reputation that it shouldn’t be. The intent is that when there is sexual abuse of a student, then 
there needs to be some investigation and maybe charges. They felt that by passing this bill, 
it would make people investigate and charged if need be. If these offenses are investigated, 
then you’re not going to be in any trouble as the reporter. 
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Senator Myrdal: I think that mandatory reporting is already there for many of these officials; 
it’s already in Century Code. This is still a slippery slope. I personally think it’s already 
protected and it can be abused either which way to cover that hole that someone might have 
a “good ol boy” system and get their friends jobs. I’m not sure if this actually accomplishes 
anything, but it opens up a risk that if you have a 17-year-old girl in love with a 30-year-old 
teacher and she claims that he sexually abused her, the investigation is on and that teacher’s 
life can be on hold for a year or two. I’m likely not voting for this legislation. 
 
(7:30) Chair Larson: Mr. Kolosky from DPI came in to testify. He said this is currently in 
federal law, and they inform school workers of this. They brought this to us because they 
wanted to have the state law be consistent with federal law. We amended this to be even 
more specific on exactly what kind of information needed to be passed on. Rather than being 
just “probable cause” it became “substantial probable cause” and we may change it further 
with this amendment to say “it’s been confirmed or an investigation is underway”. The federal 
legislation is much more encompassing; we have made it narrower. 
 
Senator Myrdal: I was talking to the School Boards Association after our hearing and they 
said nothing prevents a school from following federal law even if this doesn’t pass. Another 
thing we should be aware of is the House put “substantial probable cause” so if we’re 
changing that, we’re changing it away from the federal language to our language, but there’s 
nothing that keeps the schools from following federal law as it stands now. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: It wouldn’t necessarily jeopardize any federal funds if we didn’t pass 
this. Mandated reporters- whether you’re a teacher, school counselor or administrative staff- 
reports to Social Services or the police department, not to another school. That’s what this 
addresses- communicating with another school. 
Chair Larson: Right, so that another school doesn’t hire somebody that has that cloud 
hanging over them. 
 
Senator Bakke: We were concerned that money was tied to this and if they didn’t follow the 
federal regulations, they would lose that money. Mr. Kolosky said he doesn’t think that would 
happen. I know that this has happened. In Grand Forks I was on a committee to hire someone 
for a fairly important position and when we called for a review, we received a glowing 
recommendation for this person and found out later it was only to take the person off their 
hands. This is trying to prevent a poor character from being passed on with fraudulent 
recommendations and information being withheld.  
 
Chair Larson: They told us that it is also a crime to give false allegations, so there is that 
protection in place as well. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: I’m not sure how I feel about this bill, but I like the amendment. I 
wouldn’t support the bill without this. 
 
A Roll Call Vote was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. Amendment is adopted. 
 
Chair Larson: We will think on this and plan to take action next week. 
 
Chair Larson ends discussion on HB 1082.  
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Chair Larson opens discussion on HB 1082. 
 
Chair Larson: This is federal law. It’s good the way it is, but if we tweak it too much more, 
then the school boards and schools will be in a difficult situation because state law and 
federal law will be in conflict. 
 
Senator Bakke: This is federal law? 
 
Senator Myrdal: The actual, original language we got from the House, is the federal 
language. From what I understand, if we don’t pass this, the school boards can apply this 
anyhow. 
 
Senator Bakke: Line 9 is just saying state or local educational agencies that receive funds 
through the Elementary and Secondary act. It’s taking private schools, homeschooling and 
anybody that doesn’t receive federal dollars- it’s a way to define who they’re talking about. I 
pulled up the Education Commission and they had language from different states. We 
already say that if a mandatory reporter suspects that there is child abuse going on, and they 
don’t report it, they’re already going to be guilty of a misdemeanor. Now by doing this, we’ve 
now given them a second charge. I’m thinking it’s a bit of overkill, that we’re over-legislating. 
 
Chair Larson: In the testimony from Mr. Kolosky, it says that this bill arises from the “Every 
Student Succeeds Act” that replaced the “No Child Left Behind”. That’s where he said this 
comes from, from that verbiage. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: We’re talking about the bill as amended.  
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Chair Larson: Correct.  
 
Senator Osland: This is a federal issue, and I don’t know if it makes much difference what 
we have in the statutes. We need to address this. This may compliment or be obtuse to 
something, but assuming the federal government is competent in chasing this, we need to 
have this in law. It’s complying with federal law. 
 
Chair Larson: This bill is not necessarily complying but being in line with what the federal 
legislation is so that the state law mimics that. From what I understand from the school 
boards, they already have this in federal law. They wanted to bring the language into North 
Dakota law to be the same language. If we do too much changing on it, we will have conflict. 
The way we have it now as amended, they feel comfortable with. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: In regards to Senator Bakke’s concern about the two misdemeanors- 
one is mandated reporting to Social Services or the police department and this is mandated 
reporting to the next school. They really are two different issues. I think we should pass it. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer Moves a Do Pass as Amended. 
Senator Osland: Seconds. 
 
 
A Roll Call Vote was Taken: 4 yeas, 2 nays, 0 absent. Motion carries. 
 
Chair Larson: If this passes on the floor, it will probably go to conference committee. Good 
work everyone. 
 
 
Chair Larson will carry the bill. 
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Senator Osland 

Total 

Yes 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

Seconded By Vice Chairman Dwyer 

No Senators Yes 
Senator Bakke X 

No 

(Yes) 6 No 0 ----------- ---------------

Absent 0 -------------------------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Replace "has substantial probable cause to believe" with "it has been confirmed, or an 
investigation is underway" 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
February 12, 2019 8:18AM 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_27 _005 
Carrier: D. Larson 

Insert LC: 19.8042.02001 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1082, as engrossed: Judiciary Committee (Sen. D. Larson, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(4 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1082 was placed 
on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 13, remove the second "or" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "has substantial probable cause to believe, that" with "there is 
confirmation, or there is an investigation underway based on a claim" 

Renumber accordingly 
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2019 TESTIMONY 

HB 1082 



TESTIMONY ON HB 1082 
Judiciary Committee 

1/9/2019 
By: Joe Kolosky, Deputy Director 

701-328-2295 
North Dakota Department of Public Instruction 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee: 

My name is Joe Kolosky and I am the Deputy Director of the Office of School Approval & 

Opportunity with the Department of Public Instruction. I am here to speak in favor of HB 1082 

relating to the prohibition on aiding and abetting sexual abuse, or the "Pass the Trash Bill." 

This bill arises from the Every Student Succeeds Act that replaced No Child Left Behind 

which took effect Dec 10, 2015. Under ESSA, states were given greater authority and flexibility in 

several key areas including accountability, resources, interventions, and teacher evaluation systems. 

North Dakota stakeholder's created the entire state Every Student Succeeds Act plan including our 

unique accountability system. This system incorporates indicators in student engagement, choice 

readiness in the high school, student academic growth in the elementary school and GED 

completion rates. This is a stark contrast to No Child Left Behind in which accountability was solely 

based on test scores and graduation rates. 

North Dakota's Every Student Succeeds Act plan was accepted and approved by the United 

States Department of Education on Sept 1, 2017. With this approval, the expectation was that 

ESSA's subsections would be abided by as well. This includes Fiscal Transparency, which outlines 

spending to the school level, and the subsection in which I am speaking on today. 

It is important to note that The North Dakota Department of Public Instruction has worked 

closely with Senator John Hoeven and his office on this amendment to Every Student Succeeds Act 
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to ensure that school districts were not passing harmful teachers, administrators and other personnel 

from one district to another by providing positive letters of recommendations or failing to inform 

future school districts of situations that occurred involving minors or students. 

Specifically in Every Student Succeeds Act it is stated: "The state educational agency, or 

local educational agency that receives federal funds under the Elementary & Secondary Education 

Act, Section 8546 (20 U.S.C. § 7826) shall prohibit any individual who is a school employee, 

contractor, or agent, or any state educational agency or local educational agency, from assisting a 

school employee, contractor, or agent in obtaining a new job, apart from the routine transmission of 

administrative and personnel files, if the individual or agency knows, or has probable cause to 

believe, that such school employee, contractor, or agent engaged in sexual misconduct regarding a 

minor or student in violation of law." 

This bill is intended to keep our children safe and fulfill the expectations and obligation that 

all schools in North Dakota are compliant with state and federal laws. The language of this bill iss 

as minimalistic as necessary to fulfill those expectations. 

Chairman Koppelman and Members of the Committee, that concludes my prepared 

testimony and I will stand for any questions you may have. 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Becker 

January 15, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1082 

Page 1, line 14, after "has" insert "substantial" 

Page 1, line 17, remove "giving rise to probable cause" 

Page 2, line 5, replace "four years" with "one year" 

Renumber accordingly 
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TESTIMONY ON HB 1082 
Senate Judiciary Committee 

2/4/2019 
By: Joe Kolosky, Deputy Director 

701-328-2295 
North Dakota Department of Public Instruction 

Madam Chairwoman and Members of the Committee: 

·2 -Y --z..c l r.1 

My name is Joe Kolosky and I am the Deputy Director of the Office of School Approval & 

Opportunity with the Department of Public Instruction. I am here to speak in favor of HB 1082 

relating to the prohibition on aiding and abetting sexual abuse, or the "Pass the Trash Bill." 

This bill arises from the Every Student Succeeds Act that replaced No Child Left Behind 

which took effect Dec 10, 2015. Under the Every Student Succeeds Act, states were given greater 

authority and flexibility in several key areas including accountability, resources, interventions, and 

teacher evaluation systems. North Dakota stakeholders created the entire state Every Student 

Succeeds Act plan including our unique accountability system. This system incorporates indicators 

in student engagement, choice readiness in the high school, student academic growth in the 

elementary school and GED completion rates. This is a stark contrast to No Child Left Behind in 

which accountability was solely based on test scores and graduation rates. 

North Dakota's Every Student Succeeds Act plan was accepted and approved by the United 

States Department of Education on Sept I, 2017. With this approval, the expectation was that the 

Every Student Succeeds Act's subsections would be abided by as well. This includes Fiscal 

Transparency, which outlines spending to the school level, and the subsection in which I am 

speaking on today . 
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It is important to note that The North Dakota Department of Public Instruction has worked 

closely with Senator John Hoeven and his office on this amendment to the Every Student Succeeds 

Act. This amendment will help ensure that school distiicts are not passing harmful teachers, 

adminjstrators and other personnel from one distiict to another by providing positive letters of 

recommendations or failing to inform future school districts of situations that occuned involving 

students. 

Specifically in the Every Student Succeeds Act it is stated: "The state educational agency, or 

local educational agency that receives federal funds under the Elementary & Secondary Education 

Act, Section 8546 (20 U.S.C. § 7826) shall prohibit any individual who is a school employee, 

contractor, or agent, or any state educational agency or local educational agency, from assisting a 

school employee, contractor, or agent in obtaining a new job, apart from the routine transmission of 

admimstrative and personnel files, if the individual or agency knows, or has probable cause to 

believe, that such school employee, contractor, or agent engaged in sexual misconduct regarding a 

minor or student in violation oflaw." 

This bill is intended to keep our children safe and fulfill the expectations and obligation that 

all schools in North Dakota are compliant with state and federal laws. The language of this bill is as 

minimalistic as necessary to fulfill those expectations. 

Chairwoman Larson and Members of the Committee, that concludes my prepared testimony 

and l will stand for any questions you may have . 

Page 2 of 2 



Mr 2 
H B  !08 Z 

R . f . '2.-Y - 1 q  

EDUCATI O N  COM M ISS I O N  
O F  T H E S TAT E S  

Yo u r  e d u c a t i o n  p o l i c y  tea m .  

esponse to  m o rmatron request 

Prepared December 4th, 2018 

Alyssa Evans 

aevans@ecs.org 

Th is response was p repared for K irsten Baes ler, State Superintendent, 

North  Dakota Depa rtment of Pub l ic I nstruct ion 

You r  Question :  
You requested i nformat ion rega rd ing how states add ress a n d  report teacher 
m isconduct, specifica l ly i n  response to the section of ESSA requ i ring pol icies 
that p roh ib it the p rovis ion of a recommendation of employment for a n  
employee i f  t h e  state educat ion agency, school d istrict, or  school knows, o r  has 
probable cause to be l ieve, that the employee has engaged in sexua l  
m isconduct with a student {20  U .S.C. § 7926) .  

Our  Response : 
The 2015 passage of ESSA a nd  the recent U .S. Depa rtment of Education "Dea r 
Co l league . . .  " letter sent out to remind education admin istrators of the 
requ i rements under ESSA specifica l ly rega rd ing educator sexua l  m isconduct 
have prompted some states to change the ir statutes, regu lations, or even l ocal 

� to a l ign with the federa l  provis ion .  

-Whi le some states i n co rporated t h e  federa l  pol icy a lmost verbatim, there a re 
other, more va ried a pp roaches to attempting to meet the ESSA requ i rement. 
States address genera l  school  person nel  m isconduct us ing va rious methods 
such as esta b l is h i ng grounds  for the revocation of an educator l icense, revis ing 
crim ina l  statutes, requ i ring report ing, creating tra i n ing programs, esta b l ish i ng 
specific h i r ing processes, proh ib it ing certa in confidentia l ity agreements, and  
more .  

Be low a re some examples of recent state legislation (some enacted before 
ESSA) on school personne l  m isconduct that i ncorporate some of those 
a pproaches to add ress the issue .  P lease note that th is is not a n  exhaustive l ist 
of ways states a re tack l ing th is p roblem. We have h igh l ighted components of 
b i l l s  that may be more comprehens ive in the ir approach to address ing tea cher 
sexua l  m isconduct .  

Reporting Requirements 

Tennessee: The leg is latu re passed a few b i l ls re lated to teacher m isconduct i n  
2018 : 

• SB 2013 {2018) revises the teacher code of eth ics, add ing a mong other 
th ings, a proh ib it ion on  teacher-student sexua l  m isconduct, a nd  

Additional Resources 

./ ECS 2017 a nd 2018 state 
educatio n  pol icy tracki ng on 
teacher m isconduct and 
a rch ived pol icy tracking, 
1994-2016 on :  
School safety, Background  
checks, a nd Teacher rights 

./ Oregon Legis lat ive Counsel 
opin ion  memo on sex abuse 
in schools. 

./ US Depa rtment of Education 
guidance on 20 U .S.C. § 7926. 

./ Ch i l d  Welfare : Federa l 
Agencies Can Better Support 
State Efforts to Prevent and  
Respond to Sexual Abuse by 
School Personnel (GAO 
Report, 2014) 

./ The Nationa l  Association of 
State D i rectors of Teacher 
Educat ion a nd Certificat ion 
(NASDTEC) deve loped a 
Model Code of Eth ics for 
Educators as  wel l  as  a 
database of actions taken 
aga inst i nd iv idua l  educator 
l icenses for LEAs' reference. 

requ i res p rofess iona l  development and tra i n ing. It a lso adds a report ing requ i rement for a ny teacher who 

Education Commission of the States strives to respond to information requests with in 24 hours. This document 

reflects our best efforts but it may not reflect exhaustive research. Please let us know if you would l ike a more 

comprehensive response. Our staff is a lso avai lable to provide unbiased advice on pol icy plans, consult on proposed 

legislation and testify at legislative hearings as third-party experts. 
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has persona l knowledge of a nother educator in breach of the code of eth ics a nd  p rovides that  a fa i l u re to 

report wil l a lso be a b reach of the code .  
• SB 2012 (2018) requ i res the state boa rd of education to deve lop pol icies conce rn ing the t ransm itta l of fin a l  

d iscip l ina ry act ions taken by  the boa rd on educator l icenses to  the nationa l c lea r inghouse adm in iste red by 

the Nationa l  Association of State D i rectors of Teacher Education and Cert ificat ion (NASDTEC) .  I n  add it ion, it 

requ i res the state boa rd to post on its website a l l  f ina l  d isc ip l ina ry actions taken by the  boa rd on educator 

l icenses. *For more information about NASDTEC's clearinghouse see "Additional Resources" sidebar. 

Utah: HB 345 (2015), tit led "Education Abuse Pol icy", among other th ings, requ i res the  State Boa rd of Education and  

the  Utah  Profess iona l  Practices Advisory Commission to  ta ke d iscip l ina ry action aga inst a ny educator who vio lates 

the state's mandatory physica l or sexua l  abuse report ing laws. Other components of t he  b i l l  mod ified d isc losu re 

requ i rements concerning re lated investigat ions, reports, hearings or sign ifica nt i nformat ion a bout an educator, 

requ i red a review of an  appl icant's references and d iscip l i ne  records prior to h i ri ng them, a nd  mod ified the d uties 

a nd processes re lated to the overs ight of compla ints and investigations of educators .  

Training 

California: AB 1058 (2015) requ i res the State Depa rtment of Education to estab l ish best p ract ices for school  

personne l  to prevent abuse, inc lud ing sexua l  abuse, of ch i ldren on school  grou nds, by school  personne l, o r  i n  school­

sponsored programs, and  to post on its I nte rnet Web s ite l in ks to exist ing tra i n ing  resou rces. The b i l l  encourages loca l 

educationa l  agencies, state specia l schoo ls, and  d iagnostic centers to pa rticipate i n  t ra i n ing on the  p revent ion of 

abuse, inc lud ing sexua l  abuse of ch i ld ren on school grou nds, by school personne l, or in  schoo l-sponsored programs. 

It a lso encou rages them to provide school employees with that tra in ing at least o nce every 3 yea rs. 

Changes to Hiring Processes, Confidentiality Agreements, and Disclosure Requirements 

I ndiana: HB  1005 (2016), among other th ings, provides that a confidentia l ity agreement entered i nto by a school and  

an employee i s  not enforceab le aga inst t he  school if the employee committed a n  act res u lt ing in  a substa ntiated 

report of abuse or neglect. 

Pennsylvania :  HB 1816 (2014) p rovides that app l icants for positions with schoo l entit ies that wou ld i nvolve d i rect 

contact with ch i ldren must d isc lose whether  they have ever been the subject of a n  i nvestigat ion into a l legat ions of 

abuse or sexua l  m isconduct, among other th i ngs. 

Add it iona l ly, school entit ies and independent contracto rs may no longer enter into contracts o r  agreements that 

have the effect of suppress ing or  expunging information re lated to employee sexua l  m isconduct, u n less afte r an 

investigation of the a l legat ions a re found to be fa lse. (See summary here. ) 

Missouri: Among the provis ions of SB 54 (2011)-na med the "Amy Hesti r Student P rotect ion Act" after a student 

that was sexua l ly assau lted by a teacher- is a requ i rement that a l l  school d ist r icts adopt a w ritten pol icy relat ing to 

information that the d istrict wi l l  provide about former employees (certified and  non-cert ified )  to other pub l ic 

schools. 

The bi l l  a lso perm its school d istricts to be he ld c iv i l ly l iable fo r fa i l u re to d isclose informat ion a bout an employee who 

was d ism issed or who res igned due  to su bstantiated a l legations of  sexua l  m isconduct to a subsequent employing 

d istrict .  F ina l ly, i t  requ i res d istricts to revea l find ings of substa ntiated a l legations on  any  former employee to a ny 

pub l ic school d istrict that i nqu i res. (See summary and re lated pol icy recommendat ions here . )  

Education Commission o f  the States strives t o  respond t o  information requests with in  2 4  hours. This document 

reflects our best efforts but it may not reflect exhaustive research. Please let us  know if you would l ike a more 

comprehensive response. Our staff is also ava i lable to provide unbiased advice on pol icy p lans, consult on proposed 

legislation and testify at legislative hearings as  third-party experts. 
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Nevada: AB 362 {2017) requ i res an  app l ica nt for employment who may have d i rect contact with pup i ls to provide 

emp loyment h isto ry a nd  a uthorizat ion to release employment information to the prospective emp loyer. It provides 

that an a pp l ica nt who knowing ly provides fa lse information or wi l lfu l ly fa i l s  to d isclose i nformat ion is subject to 

d isc ip l i ne  a nd  is gu i lty of a m isdemeanor. 

Add it iona l ly, it p roh i b its a d istr ict, cha rte r school o r  u n ivers ity school govern ing body from enter ing into any 

agreement that :  

1 )  has  the  effect of suppress ing information re lat ing to an  invest igat ion of a report of suspected abuse or 

sexua l  m isconduct by a cu rrent or former employee; 

2) affects the a b i l ity of the govern ing body or independent contra ctor to report suspected abuse or sexua l  

m isconduct; o r  

3 )  requ i res the  govern ing body or  independent contractor to  expunge certa in  i nformation from any 

documents ma inta i ned by the govern i ng body or  independent contractor. 

F ina l ly, the  b i l l  p rovides that any  information col lected from a n  a pp l ica nt for employment o r  a n  employer is 

confident ia l a nd  is not a pu b l i c  book or record . 

New Jersey: S 414 (2018) requ i res a pp l ica nts to submit a written statement d isc los ing if they were ever the subject of 

a ny ch i ld a buse or sexua l  m isconduct investigation or had the i r  emp loyment or l icense adverse ly affected during such 

an investigat ion . I t  fu rther  requ i res schools, d istricts, and services providers, to review and  confirm the app l ica nt's 

wr itten statement .  

Changes Related to Educator licenses 

yoming: SF 42 (2018) perm its the state boa rd to deny any a pp l ica nt for teacher certificat ion who has been 

convicted of a fe lony if the  fe lony re lated to the practice of teach ing .  The b i l l  specifica l ly adds  that a ny fe lony re lated 

to a sexua l  offense sha l l  be cons idered to re late to the pract ice of teach ing .  

Criminal and Other Penalties 

Texas: Among the provis ions  of SB 7 (2017) is an  expans ion of the proh ib it ion on im proper employee and student 

re lat ionsh i ps for a ny school  employee serving in  a capacity that requ i res a l icense. The b i l l  a lso creates an offense for 

certa in  persons  who fa i l  to fi le a t ime ly report with the intent to concea l an  educator's  cr im i n a l  record or an a l leged 

inc ident of m isconduct, wh ich would be pu n ishab le as a state ja i l  fe lony. 

Add it iona l ly, the  b i l l  expands  m isconduct report ing requ i rements for pr inc ipa ls, su perintendents, and  d istrict 

d i rectors of school  d istr icts, c h a rter schools, d istricts of innovation, service centers, a nd  sha red service a rra ngements. 

Utah :  HB 213 (2014) mod ifies c rim ina l  statutes concern ing sexua l  a buse of a m i no r  to inc lude school employees and 

volu nteers i n  add it ion to a du lt teachers and fu rther cla rifies that  such abuse is grounds for d iscip l i na ry action and 

revocat ion of the  educator' s  l i cense .  

Revisions to Statutes Related to People in Positions of Trust/ Authority 

Florida :  H B  485 (2014) expa nds the defin it ion of "authority figu re" to inc lude anyone  over the age of 18 working, 

contract ing, or vo lu nteer ing  with a school .  It su bsequently reclass ifies the fe lony degree of an offense, making the 

offense more severe if the offense is committed by an a uthority figu re of a schoo l aga inst a student. 

Education Commission of the States strives to respond to information requests withi n  24 hours .  This document 

reflects our best efforts but it may not reflect exhaustive research. Please let us  know if you would l ike a more 

comprehensive response. Our staff is a lso avai lable to provide unbiased advice on pol icy plans, consult on proposed 

legislation and testify at legislative hearings as  third-party experts. 
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Jud i cia ry Com m ittee 
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Cha i rman  Lcvson , Vice Cha i r  \)w'I� , other Senators . I wou ld  l i ke to fi rst than k  you for 

be i ng  here today and  l isten ing  to my test imony. 

My name is  Eri n  Claussen . I am a j u n ior  at the U n ivers ity of Mary and I am studyi ng 

Socia l  Work and  Add ict ions Counse l i ng .  Over the past few years I have worked i n  a variety of 

jobs i n  wh ich I have worked with youth in d ifferent cris is  setti ngs from ages five to e ighteen .  

I am here i n  support of B i l l  S J  1 082 . Th is  b i l l  shou ld b e  passed because there is 

cu rrent ly no law aga inst a id ing and abetti ng  sexua l  abuse .  Th is  is  a prob lem because it fu rther 

promotes i nd ifference and bystander apathy, which is  the fa i l u re to take action  based on the 

be l i ef that someone else wi l l .  With sexual assau lt ,  there is a l ready a stigma about speaki ng up 

about one's experiences and lett ing th is  i nd ifference persist only strengthens that stigma i n  our 

culture .  In a Cris is  I ntervent ion class , we d iscussed how important it is  for peop le to ta l k  about 

the i r  trauma in order to help the i r  hea l i ng  process . This hea l i ng is  so important  because trauma 

can affect one for the rest of  the i r  l ives . 

The ch i l d ren add ressed i n  th is b i l l  deserve to be defended and protected from sexua l  

assau lt .  I f  th i s  b i l l  i s  enacted correctly, it wi l l  g ive the youth a safe environment to  learn i n  and 

know that  they a re be i ng  cared for by the adu lts they are entrusted to . I n  my experience as a 

shel ter  worker, if a ch i ld  comes i nto an uncomfortab le space with people they do not trust, they 

are less l i ke ly to ta l k  about prob lems they a re deal i ng  with . However, if a ch i ld  fee ls  they are in a 

safe env i ronment ,  they wi l l  feel  they are ab le to share what is  go ing on with a trusted adu lt .  Th is 
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b i ll will improve the safety of our schools by making adults stand up for the k ids that are 

entrusted to them, as well as create a punishment for those who fa i l  to do so. 

I f  we show th is generation of youth how they deserve to be protected and cared for, it will 

become natu ral for them to do the same for generations to come. If th is b i ll does not pass , the 

cycle of ind ifference will continue when it comes to sexual abuse. I f  the b i ll does pass , we have 

the opportunity to change the way kids deal with trauma in our schools . 

Thank you and I stand for questions . 
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19.8042.02001 
Title . 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Bakke 

February 5, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1082 

Page 1, line 13, remove the second "or" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "has substantial probable cause to believe" with "it has been 
confirmed, or an investigation is underway" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.8042.02001 
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